




ITEM I. B. 



















ITEM I. B. 





































Memorandum
To: Mayor and Council 

From: Jim Crosland, Deputy City Manager 

Date: July 5, 2022 

Subject: First Reading of Ordinance 2022-11 Enacting a New Article IV related to Special Events 
Permitting in Chapter 6 (“Amusements and Entertainments”) 

Issue 
Council approval is needed for the First Reading of an Ordinance to address Special Events and its permitting 
issued by the Planning and Development staff. 

Discussion 
Currently, the City has an Ordinance outlining the requirements for business licenses, uses, and revocations, 
but not one specifically for Special Events Permitting. The attached ordinance specifically addresses the 
definition of Special Events, requirements and application for permits, conditions for the issuance of permits, 
duties of the organizer(s), road closures, conditions for denial or revocation of the permit, and the 
enforcement of laws.  

This new Ordinance will allow staff to ensure the safety and well being of our citizens and visitors, while 
having a great time, at our approved events.  

Recommendation 
Staff recommends Council give First Reading approval of Ordinance 2022-11 Enacting a New Article IV 
(“Special Events; Permit Required”) in Chapter 6 (“Amusements and Entertainments”) 

ITEM IV. A. 



1 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) 
) 

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON ) 
) 

CITY OF CAYCE   ) 

        ORDINANCE 2022-11 
Enacting a New Article IV ("Special 
Events; Permit Required") in 
Chapter 6 ("Amusements and 
Entertainments") of the City Code 

WHEREAS, the City Council, on the recommendation of City Administration, has 
determined that it is in the interest of the City and its citizens, inhabitants, visitors, and 
businesses, and that it further is in accord with the City's authority to enact ordinances 
which appear necessary and proper for the security, general welfare, and convenience of 
the City, as well as to preserve health, peace, order, and good government within the 
City, to enact new City Code provisions establishing a permitting process for the conduct 
of special events, as defined, within the City,  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the City of 
Cayce, in Council, duly assembled, that a new Article IV ("Special Events; Permit 
Required") in Chapter 6 ("Amusements and Entertainments") of the City Code is hereby 
enacted to provide as follows: 

ARTICLE IV. - SPECIAL EVENTS; PERMIT REQUIRED 

Section 6.57. -  Title. 

This article shall be known as and cited as the Special Events Ordinance. 

Section 6.58. - Definition. 

When used in this article, and except when the context clearly indicates a different 
meaning, the words Special Event mean any (1) activity on private or public property 
other than the normal use for which the property is zoned, and (2) any event including, 
but not limited to, festivals, block parties, races, musical events or concerts, exhibitions, 
fairs, and carnivals. Special Event, for purposes of the permitting process and permit 
required by this article, does not include an event held inside a church, place of worship, 
school, assembly hall, concert hall, or government building. 

Section 6.59. - Requirement for permit; application for permit. 

Any person, group or organization wishing to hold a Special Event within the City is 
required to obtain a Special Event permit after completing and submitting to the City a 
Special Event permit packet no later than 21 days prior to the date of the event. The 
Special Event permit packet, when completed, is to be reviewed for comments or 
recommendations by the following City departments/persons: Special Event Coordinator, 
Planning and Development, Fire Chief/Marshal, and Chief of Police. The City Manager 
will make the final review and the final determination on whether the permit is approved, 
approved with modifications and conditions, or denied.    

ITEM IV. A. 



 2 

 
Section 6.60. - Permit requirements.  
 
All Special Events on public or private property: 
 
a. Shall adhere to all Federal, State or local laws or regulations and all guidelines of the 

City  
b. Shall not have a significant adverse impact on nearby properties 
c. Shall not impede or interfere with the flow of traffic without a road closure approval 
d. Shall not be of such size or duration that the event cannot reasonably be 

accommodated at the location 
e. Shall adhere to all noise ordinances. No event may begin earlier than               and 

must end by          . 
f. Shall not create risks of : 

1. damage to public or private property 
2. injury to persons, or 
3. unlawful disturbances 

g. Shall provide the address of the location, as well as the name and relevant contact 
information of the owner and lawful occupant of the premises, and, when applicable, 
the name of the manager of the premises   

h. Shall provide the following information if security is to be utilized for the event: The 
name and contact information of the security company or police agency, and 
description of the number, placement, duties, and authority of the security personnel  

i. Shall provide written authorization stating that both the owner of the property and the 
tenant or other lawful occupant affirm that they are aware of the special event and that 
they authorize the special event  

j. Shall provide a site plan showing a reasonably accurate representation of all vendor 
locations, stages, first aid locations, carnival rides, portable restrooms, etc. The site 
plan shall include indicated access for first responder equipment.  

 
Section 6.61. - Issuance of permit; conditions. 
 
The City will process and issue a permit for a Special Event unless the City, in its sole 
discretion, determines that: 
 

a. The event organizer conducted a Special Event or other event within the City during 
the previous twenty-five (25) months in a manner that failed to substantially comply 
with City permitting conditions or with Federal, State or local law. 

b. The conduct of the event will substantially interrupt traffic or otherwise adversely 
impact public safety.  

c. The nature of the event will require significant City police presence such that 
adequate police staffing cannot be provided to the remainder of the City. 



 3 

d. The application was not received at least 21 days prior to the event (45 days prior if 
requesting road closures). 

e. Another event already has been approved for the same location and/or for a location 
in such close proximity that both events cannot occur with due regard for public 
safety. 

f. The event and/or organizer will be in violation of City, State or Federal laws. 
g. The concentrations of persons, animals, or vehicles within the Special Event venue 

or immediate area will interfere with the movement of police, fire, ambulance or other 
emergency vehicles. 

h. The event organizer demonstrates an inability or unwillingness to comply with all 
Special Event conditions.  

 
Section 6- 62. - Duties of organizer. 
 
Based on the size and/or nature of the event, the City may require liability insurance be 
carried by the organizer and naming the City, or the owner of private property, as an 
additional insured. Unless specified by the City, the organizer of any Special Event will 
be required to: 
 

a. Turn in all required paperwork 21 days prior to the event (45 days prior for road 
closures or special circumstances) 

b. Read and become familiar with all guidelines and rules for Special Events within 
the City 

c. Obtain all necessary permits and insurance prior to the event 
d. Ensure all food vendors have completed business licensing requirements and 

necessary inspections prior to the event 
e. Collect and remit Hospitality Tax on all food sales or ensure vendors have remitted 

the Hospitality Tax to the City 
f. Obtain any necessary permissions from local businesses or property owners (for 

events on private property) 
g. Notify residents within the surrounding area at least seven (7) days prior to the 

event of possible disruptions (for events on private property) 
h. Provide adequate security 
i. Have a copy of permit on their persons at all times during the event 
j. Ensure the event follows all guidelines from the City 
k. Ensure all property is cleaned and returned to its prior state 
l. Remove all signs immediately after the event. 

 
Section 6- 63. - Road closures. 
 

a. Completed permit packets involving requested road closures are due no later than 
45 days prior to the event.  A map of affected roads must be turned in to the Cayce 



 4 

Police Department. The applicant is responsible for placing and removing 
barricades unless otherwise directed by the Chief of Police. 

b. Organizer is responsible for obtaining a letter of approval from the Cayce Police 
Department, along with a completed Road Closure form to SC DOT. 

c. Organizer must provide notification of road closures to all adjacent businesses and 
residents no less than 10 days prior to the event. 
 

Section 6-64. - Denial or revocation of permit. 

The City reserves the right to revoke and cancel any permit for a Special Event 
determined by the City, in its sole discretion, to be in violation of Federal, State or local 
laws or determined by the City, in its sole discretion, to create any noise or disturbance 
to the surrounding area above what is considered reasonable.  The City may also charge 
fees to any organizer whose event is determined, in the sole discretion of the City, to 
require police, fire, or emergency services greater than originally determined. If adequate 
security is not provided for an event, the Chief of Police may require additional security 
or cancel the event.   

The City also may revoke or deny a Special Event permit when: 

a. The completed packet was not returned within the allotted time frame 
b. The applicant is found to have violated Federal, State, or local laws in a previous 

event 
c. Sufficient insurance has not been provided 
d. Police have determined that the event requires more security than is or can be 

provided 
e. Adequate parking is not provided 
f. Organizer has failed to obtain any necessary permits and licenses from other 

agencies 
g. The event will violate public health or jeopardize public safety 
h. The organizer has failed to notify surrounding businesses or residents 
i. Noise is found above allowable decibels or agreed upon levels 
j. Facts or assertions in application have been falsified 
k. The permit was issued in error, or 
l. Any other urgent or emergency situation is presented that, as determined by the 

City, endangers the health or safety of event participants or the general public. 
 

Section 6-65. - Enforcement of laws. 

Nothing contained in this article precludes the exercise of the authority of any law 
enforcement officer to arrest a person, even if the person is engaged in an act or activity 
permitted under this article, when the conduct of such person violates the laws of the 
State, other ordinances of the City, or unreasonably obstructs the public streets and 



 5 

sidewalks of the City, or if the activity causes undue disturbance, interference, or 
molestation of other persons making lawful use of the space in a peaceful manner. 

All participants and organizers of Special Events on public or private property shall comply 
with all relevant City, State and Federal laws including but not limited to laws concerning: 

a. Alcohol possession and consumption (must be 21, no open containers on public 
property) 

b. Parking and traffic laws 
c. Noise ordinances 
d. Disorderly conduct 
e. Trespassing, or 
f. Wildlife and environmental protections. 

 

This Ordinance shall become effective upon Council approval on second reading. 
  

DONE IN MEETING DULY ASSEMBLED, this ______ day of _________2022. 

 

                ______________________________ 
                Elise Partin, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
______________________________  
Mendy Corder, CMC, Municipal Clerk 
 
First Reading: _____________________ 
 
Second Reading and Adoption: ____________ 
 
Approved as to form:     __________________________ 
         Danny C. Crowe, City Attorney 
 



Memorandum
To: Mayor and Council 

From: Jim Crosland, Deputy City Manager 

Date: July 5, 2022 

Subject: Memorandum of Understanding and Agreement between the City of Cayce and 
the Town of Springdale for Building Official Services 

Issue 
Council approval is needed for the renewal of the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) and 
Agreement for the City of Cayce to provide commercial and residential building plan reviews 
and inspections to the Town of Springdale at the rate of $1,250 per month until June 30, 2024. 

Discussion 
The City of Cayce and the Town of Springdale have had a Memorandum of Understanding and 
Agreement for Cayce’s Building Official to provide them plan review and inspection services 
since December 18, 2014.  

The proposed agreement is identical to the current agreement but slightly increases the fee 
from $1,000 to $1,250 per month, which completely covers the cost of our Building Official, and 
extends the agreement until June 30, 2024. 

Springdale Town Council is in agreement with this MOU.  

Recommendation 
Staff recommends approval of the Memorandum of Understanding and Agreement between 
the City of Cayce and the Town of Springdale for Building Official services. 

ITEM V. A. 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
) AND AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY OF 

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON           ) CAYCE AND TOWN OF SPRINGDALE 

THIS MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING AND AGREEMENT is made and 
entered into this _____ day of __________________, 2022, by and between the City of 
Cayce, South Carolina (“Cayce”) and the Town of Springdale, South Carolina 
(“Springdale”) with approval of their governing bodies. 

WHEREAS, Springdale desires to contract with Cayce for Cayce to provide 
required building code inspection and plan review of commercial and residential buildings 
for Springdale for the purpose of providing code compliance for construction projects; and 

WHEREAS, Springdale and Cayce recognize the positive impact this contract will 
have in maintaining continuity of essential services through inspections and plan review 
on all commercial and residential projects; and  

WHEREAS, Springdale agrees to reimburse Cayce for the cost of inspections and 
plan reviews as indicated below, 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the services and agreement described 
herein, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

1. Springdale agrees to compensate Cayce for provision of services as follows:

a. Springdale agrees to pay, directly to Cayce, a flat payment rate of $1,250
per month ($15,000 per year). Springdale agrees to pay this amount no
later than the 15th of each month during the life of this agreement.

2. Cayce will provide building code inspections and plan reviews of commercial and
residential buildings for Springdale, as follows:

a. The Licensed General Contractor or Residential Home Builder (hereinafter
“contractor”) shall obtain approval(s) and all related permits from Springdale
for a commercial or residential building located, or to be located, within the
boundaries of Springdale.

b. The contractor for a project shall submit plans for review and pay fees to
Springdale. Springdale shall deliver said plans to the Cayce Building Official
(hereinafter “Official”). Building plans may be submitted to the Official prior
to Springdale’s approval(s) in order to expedite the permitting process if
desired by the contractor and approved by Springdale.

3. Contractors shall call in all inspection requests to Springdale and Springdale
shall keep a daily log of all inspection requests and inspections conducted.

ITEM V. A. 



4. Springdale and Cayce agree that services for inspections and plan review will be 
handled by licensed inspectors and plans examiners, as required by the South 
Carolina Department of Labor, Licensing and Regulation. 

 
5. The Building Official of Cayce shall interpret provisions of the applicable Building 

Code(s). Such interpretations may be appealed to the City of Cayce Code Board 
of Appeals. Fees for an appeal shall be as set forth by Cayce ordinance. In the 
event of an appeal, the City of Cayce Building Official will testify as to code 
requirements.    
 

6. Springdale and its successors and assigns do hereby remise, release, acquit, 
and forever discharge Cayce, its employees, agents, successors, and assigns, 
from any and all actions, causes of action, claims, demands, damages, costs,  
expenses, third party actions, suits at law or for indemnity of whatever nature, 
and all consequential damage on account of, or in any way arising from, the 
services rendered under this Agreement. Springdale further agrees to hold 
harmless and indemnify Cayce for any and all losses, demands, damages, costs, 
claims, suits, and other liability arising from the services rendered by Cayce and 
by its employees and agents acting within the scope of their duties for Cayce or 
under this Agreement. 
 

7. This Agreement shall continue in force until June 30, 2024, unless terminated 
sooner, in writing, by either party, or upon Springdale’s employment of its own 
Building Official, or upon Cayce's inability to provide said inspection 
services.  Either party may terminate this Agreement only by delivering written 
notice to the other party at least 60 days prior to the effective date of such 
termination. This agreement may be extended by written amendment approved 
by the Springdale Council and the Cayce Council. 

 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, WE, THE UNDERSIGNED, have this ______ day of 
_______________, 2022, set our hands and seals hereon. 

 
 
City of Cayce     WITNESSES: 
 
______________________   __________________________ 
City Manager 
     __________________________ 
 
 
Town of Springdale    WITNESSES: 
 
_____________________   __________________________ 
Mayor 
      __________________________ 
 
 



Page 1 of 2 

Cayce Historical Museum Commission May 4, 2022, Meeting 

Minutes 
The May 4, 2022, meeting of the Cayce Historical Museum Commission (CHMC) was held in the Cayce 

Visitors Center. The meeting was convened at 4:00 by Chair Archie Moore. The following individuals 

attended the meeting:  

Name Status 

Archie Moore Chair 

Mary Sharpe Vice Chair 

James Stewart Secretary 

A.G. Dantzler Commissioner 

Charlita Earle Commissioner 

Pamela Sulton Commissioner 

Garrett Creasman Commissioner - absent 

David Brinkman Commissioner 

Marcy Hayden Commissioner -absent/excused 

Andy Thomas Cayce Museum Curator 

Jim Crosland City of Cayce Deputy City Manager 

Upcoming Events: 

May 19, 2022 – Sweetgrass Baskets Lecture 6:00 

Invocation: Commissioner Dantzler 

April Meeting Minutes:   

Following a review of the minutes from the last meeting, Commissioner Sharpe motioned that 

the meeting minutes be accepted.  This motion was seconded by Commissioner Sulton and 

approved by the Commission. 

Attendance Discussion: 

The Commission confirmed that the Chair has the capacity to excuse Commissioner absences 

from monthly meetings.   

Genesis Studios 

The Commissioners and Mr. Leo Redmond visited with Cliff Springs at Genesis Studios to look 

at some potential programming opportunities for the Museum.  These opportunities include 

augmented reality or virtual reality media that would be funded by private donations solicited by 

the studio.   

Museum Commission Bylaws 

The City Attorney has reviewed the Bylaws approved in the April Commission meeting and 

provided comments.  The Commission opted to hold a special meeting of the Bylaws Committee 

to address these comments on May 18, 2022.   

Mt. Zion Historical Marker 

The Commission received a letter from the Mt. Zion Church of Cayce asking for financial support 

for the creation of a historical marker.  Deputy City Manager Crosland pointed out that the city 

had identified a grant opportunity to fund the marker.  The Commission will revisit funding the 

marker if church’s grant application is unsuccessful or insufficient.  The Commission also 

discussed setting up an annual fund to support similar projects in the future. 

ITEM VI. A. 



Page 2 of 2 

 

Museum Staff Report 

Mr. Thomas provided his report for the Commission.  The accession of the pottery collection was 

delayed so that he could obtain some advice on best practices for handling, transportation, and 

curation.  The recent Confederation of State and Local Museums meeting was well-received.  The 

front porch proved to be a great space for hosting small events and will hopefully be put to more 

frequent use in the future.  

 

Mr. Thomas is also planning a day to sort some of the Museum’s holdings and update accession 

records.  Volunteer assistance for these tasks are welcome. 

 

With no additional items on the Agenda, Chair Moore motioned to adjourn the meeting, the motion 

was seconded. The CHMC voted to adjourn the meeting at  

5:27 PM. 



APPROVED MINUTES 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

CAYCE CITY HALL 
1800 12th Street Extension 
Monday, May 16, 2022 

6:00 PM
I. CALL TO ORDER

The meeting was called to order by Chair Ed Fuson at 6:00 pm.  Members present were Robert 
Power, Chris Kueny, and Richard Boiteau. Chris Jordan, Michael Mahoney, and Stockton Wells 
were absent.  Staff present were Monique Ocean and Michael Conley.  

II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
Chris Kueny made a motion to approve the minutes of the April 18, 2022, meeting with a 
correction to a grammatical error. Robert Power seconded the motion.  All were in favor.  

III. STATEMENT OF NOTIFICATION
Monique Ocean confirmed that the media and public were made aware of the meeting and the
public hearing.

IV. REQUEST FOR DEFERRAL BY APPLICANT
Mr. Fuson began by stating that the applicant, Wes Taylor, has requested a deferral of Map
Amendment 004-22. Mr. Fuson stated that Mr. Taylor made the deferral request by email and
that Mr. Taylor reported that threats had been made to his family.  Mr. Fuson stated that Mr.
Taylor had disclosed he would not be present at the public hearing because of the situation. Mr.
Fuson stated that the request for deferral came only hours before the meeting and he would put
the question forward to the Planning Commission as to whether they agree to approve the request
to defer the matter. Mr. Chris Kueny inquired if it was known how the threats had been delivered
to the applicant and if any reports were made to the authorities. Ms. Ocean replied to the
Planning Commission stating that she did not know how the threats were made.  Ms. Ocean also
replied to the Planning Commission that the City Manager responded to Mr. Taylor’s email and
suggested he inform the appropriate authorities about any threats. Mr. Richard Boiteau made a
motion to defer the request for Map Amendment 004-22.  Mr. Robert Power seconded the
motion.  All were in favor to defer the request to a later date, to be determined.

Mr. Fuson informed the audience that the motion for deferral had been granted by the Planning 
Commission and if the applicant chose to proceed, the matter will be presented at a later date.  

V. NEW BUSINESS
There was no new business. 

VI. ADJOURNMENT
Mr. Chris Kueny made a motion to adjourn.  Mr. Richard Boiteau seconded the motion.  All
were in favor.

A quorum of Council may be present. No discussion or action on the part of Council will be 
taken. 

ITEM VI. A. 



Memorandum
To: Mayor and Council 

From: Jim Crosland, Deputy City Manager 

Date: July 5, 2022 

Subject: Discussion and Approval of Proposed Amendments to the Cayce Museum and 
Historical Commission By-laws 

Issue 
Council approval is needed for the proposed amendments to the Cayce Museum and Historical 
Commission By-laws (see attached). 

Discussion 
On January 19, 2022 Council instructed staff to work with the Museum Commission to update 
the Commission’s By-laws to clearly identify their roles and responsibilities and to incorporate 
the related recommendations made by City Attorney Mr. Crowe during his review of the 
Commission. 

The Commission formed a subcommittee to take up this topic and report back to the whole 
Commission for comment and action.  The subcommittee consisted of: 

• Commission Chairman Archie Moore
• Commission Vice Chair Mary Sharpe
• Commissioners James Stewart, Marcy Hayden and Pamela Sulton

They met several times over the last couple months, specifically on March 8, March 30 and May 
18, in addition to their monthly Commission meetings.  On June 1, 2022 the full Commission 
approved sending the subcommittee’s recommended By-laws to City Council for adoption. 

A draft of the By-laws was presented to Council at their meeting on June 22, 2022.  It was noted 
at that meeting the proposed By-laws included language concerning to the City Attorney and 
contrary to City Ordinance and the City Manager form of government. 

At that time, Council instructed staff to remove that item and bring back the By-laws back to 
them for final consideration, which is represented by the attached.  

Recommendation 
Staff recommends approval of the Cayce Museum and Historical Commission By-laws as 
presented in this packet.   

ITEM VI. B. 



1 

Cayce Museum and Historical Commission Bylaws 
Approved by City Council 

Section I. Mission Statement: 
The Cayce Museum and Historical Commission promotes and protects the legacy 
of Cayce’s past. This legacy encompasses the precontact and historic peoples and 
events that shaped the community. The Commission also endeavors to preserve 
places, documents, and artifacts of significance to that story through museum 
collections, exhibitions, programming, and the conservation of significant 
properties within the City of Cayce. 

Section II. Name and Location 
The City of Cayce has designated the Cayce Museum and Historical Commission 
(the Commission) as an advisory and historic preservation review board oriented 
toward the fulfillment of the goals set out in the Mission Statement. 

Section III. Commission Organization 
1. The Commission’s principal place of business is the Cayce Museum located

at: 1800 12th Street, Cayce, South Carolina, 29033.
2. The Commission's membership will be comprised of nine (9) members

appointed by the Cayce City Council.
3. A Commissioner’s term of office will begin upon their appointment and

continue for a period of three (3) years.
4. Commissioners will meet monthly, as called by the Chair. Regular meetings

are typically held on the first Wednesday, at 4 p.m. A schedule of the regular
meetings shall be published and posted at City Hall in January of each year.

a. All meetings are organized in accordance with customary
parliamentary procedure with a majority vote of Commissioners
required for substantive actions.

b. A quorum must be present for a Commission meeting to be called to
order.

c. The agenda must be posted at least 24 hours in advance of Commission
meetings.

d. Meetings shall be held at the place stated on the notice and shall be
open to the public.

e. Members of the public may address the Commission in keeping with
the protocols of the Cayce City Council.

ITEM VI. B. 



2  

f. Commissioner attendance will be recorded in the minutes. 
g. Commission members are expected to attend all meetings. Failure to 

attend four (4) regularly scheduled meetings, or one third (1/3) of all 
meetings scheduled, during a Commission year, without sufficient 
excuse, will result in replacement. 

5. Special Meetings may be called by the Chair upon 48-hours’ notice, posted 
and delivered to all members. 

6. The fiscal year of the commission shall commence on the first day of July and 
end on the 30th day of June each year. 

7. The officers of the Commission shall be Chair, Vice-Chair, and Secretary. 
8. The Commissioners shall annually elect officers from the Commission 

membership at their January meeting. 
9. The Chair shall be a voting member of the Commission and shall: 

a. Call meetings of the Commission 
b. Preside at meetings 
c. Act as spokesperson for the Commission 
d. Sign documents for the Commission 
e. Transmit reports and recommendations to Council via Administration 
f. Perform other duties approved by the Commission 

10. The Vice-Chair shall be a voting member of the Commission and shall: 
a. Organize fundraising efforts 
b. Serve as primary coordinator for special events 
c. Perform any and all duties of the Chair in their absence, disability or 

disqualification. 
d. In the absence of both the Chair and the Vice-Chair, the members 

present shall elect an acting Chair. 
11. The Secretary shall be a voting member of the Commission and shall: 

a. Provide notice of meetings in accordance with the Freedom of 
Information Act 

b. Assist the Chair in the preparation of the agenda 
c. Attend, keep, and distribute the minutes and attendance for all 

Commission meetings. 
d. Distribute the minutes of regular Commission meetings to the 

Commissioners one week before the next meeting. 
e. Present adopted minutes to Museum Staff to submit to City Council to 

enter into official record. 
f. Maintain Commission records as public records 



3  

g. Include the records required for the historic preservation review board 
h. Provide written decision notifications to applicants in matters before 

the review board. 
i. Attend to Commission correspondence 
j. Perform other duties normally carried out by a secretary. 

12. The Commission may appoint, or provide for appointment, ad-hoc or working 
committees from among Commission members and Cayce residents. Only 
committees approved by majority vote of the Commissioners shall be 
designated. 

13. A Commissioner must participate in each committee and provide a committee 
report of activities to the Commission. 

 
Section IV. Role and Responsibilities of the Commission 
General responsibilities include: 

1. Support the City’s efforts in the preservation of historic properties within 
the city. Historic properties defined in the National Historic Preservation 
Act include “prehistoric or historic district, site, building, structure, or 
object included in, or eligible for inclusion on, the National Register of 
Historic Places, including artifacts, records, and material remains related 
to such a property or resource [54 U.S.C. § 300308]”. 

2. Support of the museum’s operation by municipal employees.   
3. Collaborate with and advise the municipal employees on the content and 

composition of museum exhibits and special events 
4. Encourage historical and cultural research for the community by providing 

access to electronic resources and materials curated within the Museum 
5. Municipal employees are responsible for the operation of the Museum. 
6. Supervision of archives and artifacts in the Museum collection are the 

responsibility of Museum staff. 
7. The commission will collaborate and help the Museum staff formulate and 

implement a Collections Management Policy aligned with the best 
practices and standards established by the American Association of 
Museums. 

8. The Museum Commission will collaborate with City Administration, 
Museum Staff, and Cayce citizens to develop a strategic plan for the 1) 
Museum and 2) City of Cayce preservation initiatives. 

a. The strategic plans will include a collections management policy 
and a plan for incorporating existing and emerging themes that will be 



4  

interpreted in the Museum 
9. Pending adoption of a city historic preservation ordinance designating the 

Commission as the historic preservation review board for the City of 
Cayce, the Commission shall adhere to the criteria established for 
participation in the South Carolina Certified Local Government Program 
(CLG). The Commission will: 

a. Establish criteria and processes for designating districts and 
landmarks of historic or precontact significance. 

b. Review applications for proposed alterations, relocations, 
demolitions, and new construction affecting designated historic 
preservation conservation areas or individually designated local 
landmarks. 

c. Review and evaluate all proposed National Register nominations 
within the City of Cayce. All Commission recommendations must 
be with the nomination application to the State Historic Preservation 
Office (SHPO) for consideration by the State Board of Review. 

d. Attend information or educational meetings relevant to the work and 
functions of a historic preservation review board. 

e. Seek advice from professionals in a specific discipline not 
represented on the commission as needed by actions under 
consideration. 

f. Maintain a system for the survey and inventory of historic properties 
as defined by City ordinance, SHPO guidelines, and/or the National 
Historic Preservation Act. 

g. The inventory and revisions shall be periodically evaluated to ensure 
the contents are up to date 

h. All inventory records, except in cases where a threat to preservation 
exists (e.g., archaeological sites), are open for public review at the 
Cayce Museum. 

i. Submit an annual report of Commission activities to the SHPO and 
City Council. 
The report must include the following items: 

Number of cases reviewed 
Disposition of cases 
New local designations 
Commission appointments 
New or revised resumes 



5  

Meeting minutes 
Local preservation plans and projects 

j. Any Commission member with a direct or indirect financial interest 
in any property under consideration by the Commission must 
declare that interest and recuse themselves from discussion, 
decision, or proceedings related to that property. 

 
Section V. Financial and Material Donations to the Cayce 
Museum 

1. Financial Contributions 
a. The Commission encourages financial donations in support of the 

organization’s museum development and preservation goals. 
b. The Commission will work to designate a funding partner for the 

Cayce Museum.). This partner will be a non-profit public charity 
(501[c][3]) and potentially titled the “Friends of the Cayce Museum 
and Historical Commission”. 

2. Artifacts 
a. Donated artifacts are the property of the City, to be managed by the 

Museum. Only articles pertinent to the City's history, or 
representative of that history, or of special significance will be 
accepted as determined by Museum staff in consultation with the 
Commission. A signed receipt must be secured from each artifact's 
donor, relinquishing complete ownership to the Museum. Donated 
artifacts may not be deaccessioned without due consideration of the 
ethical standards of national museum associations and/or terms 
established by the donation agreement. 

b. The Museum does not accept ancestral remains, funerary objects, 
sacred, or items of cultural patrimony without documented consent 
from the descendant community in conjunction with local, state, and 
federal law. 

Section VI. Amendments 
a. No amendment to the Commission bylaws may be introduced and voted 

upon in the same meeting. 
b. Amendments to the organization bylaws require the majority vote of the 

Commission membership. Following the vote, these amendments must be 
approved by the Cayce City Council to take effect. 



City of Cayce 
Committee Appointments/Reappointments 

July 5, 2022

COUNCIL ACTION REQUIRED 

PUBLIC SAFETY FOUNDATION – FIVE (5) POSITIONS 
Ms. Regina Lemmon Bush and Mr. Hubert Smoak recently resigned from the Public Safety 
Foundation.  Ms. Ashley Hunter’s term expired in May 2022 and she did not reapply.  There are two 
(2) additional openings as well.  Ms. Karen Sanders’ term expired in May 2022 and her
reappointment application is attached for Council’s review.

The City has received potential member applications for the Public Safety Foundation from Ms. 
Barbara Corbitt, Mr. Miles Fisher and Ms. Dory Benitez.  Their applications are attached for 
Council’s review in the order they were received.    

Note, the Public Safety Foundation asked Council to hold on appointing applicants to open positions 
so they could amend their by-laws to update membership terms – namely, to include the new 
position of Fire Chief.  These amended by-laws were approved by the Foundation on June 29, 2022.  
As a Foundation, those by-laws do not require Council approval. 

NO COUNCIL ACTION REQUIRED 
The following positions remain open until receipt of potential member applications. 

STANDARD TECHNICAL CODES BOARD OF APPEALS – TWO (2) POSITIONS 
Reviews citizen appeals to ensure building codes, property maintenance codes and fire codes are 
properly interpreted and implemented fairly.  Members who serve on this Board must be either an 
Engineer, Contractor, Architect or Design Professional. There are no recommendations at this time. 

APPOINTMENT PROCESS 

Cayce citizens have an opportunity to actively participate in the City through their services on a 
number of advisory boards, commissions, foundations and committees. These groups help shape 
and carry out policy. 

Applications are accepted at any time for all City of Cayce boards, commissions, foundations and 
committees.  Cayce citizens wishing to apply for appointment may submit a potential member 
application to the Municipal Clerk, P. O. Box 2004, Cayce, SC 29171. More information and a copy 
of the application can be found on our website at https://www.caycesc.gov/boards.php or by calling 
City Hall at 803-796-9020. 

City Council considers applications at a meeting immediately following an opening. 

ITEM VI. C. 

https://www.caycesc.gov/boards.php


ITEM VI. C. 



ITEM VI. C. 



ITEM VI. C. 



ITEM VI. C. 


	Agenda
	Item I. B. - June 7, 2022, Regular Council Meeting Minutes
	Item I. B. - June 22, 2022, Public Hearing & Regular Council Meeting Minutes
	Item IV. A. - White Paper Special Events Ordinance
	Item IV. A. - Ordinance, Special Events
	Item V. A. - White Paper Springdale MOU and Agreement
	Item V. A. - Springdale MOU 22-24
	Item VI. A. - Cayce Museum Commission Meeting Minutes
	Item VI. A. - Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
	Item VI. B. - White Paper Museum Commission Bylaws
	Item VI. B. - Museum Commission By-laws FINAL
	Item VI. C. - Appts and Reappts Report
	Item  VI. C. - Sanders Reappt Application
	Item VI. C. - Corbitt Potential Member Application
	Item VI. C. - Fisher Potential Member Application
	Item VI. C. - Benitz Potential Member Application

